
冀教版八年级Unit5
	单元课题：Buying and Selling
	U5

	单元重点

	I.词汇(Main words)：
pay, dollar, sixteen, cheap, pocket, tie, while, afford, cent, everyday, husband, gate, honest, value, trust, create, customer, already, similar, offer, shine, succeed, crazy 

	II.短语
make money赚钱                     move up 提升;上升;向前移动 
catch one’s eye引起某人的注意         come up to达到；等于      
beef up加强（增援，充实）；补充（人数）  have an interest in 对…感兴趣 pay for赔偿；为…而付钱；为…付出代价   be surprised to… 感到惊讶 

push a product 推销产品              stand out突出；站出来；坚决反对
sell out of 卖出去的                   go/walk over to从一处到另一处
less than少于                        for sale出售；待售             

	III.句型：
1. What is it for?
2. I’m afraid I can’t afford it.
3. I think that they will support the idea. 

	IV.语法：

Object Clause（宾语从句）

	V. 话题：

1. Raising Money （筹钱）
2. Talking about Business（谈论生意）

	V．难点区分：

1. everyday 与every day
2. a little, little, a few与 few
3. sometimes, some times, sometime与 some time 
4. put on与 wear
5. carry, bring与 take
6. offer 与 provide

7. invent, invention与 inventor  

	Lesson25 —Lesson30

	L25 Raising Money

	I.词汇(Words)
1. raise   （概二L51）
Maybe we can work together to raise some money.
或许我们可以一起合作筹一些钱。

raise及物动词，过去时和过去分词raised.  raise some money“筹一些钱”（1）举起；提起；使升高：
She raised her head and went out without a word.
她什么也没说，扬起头来走了出去。

All the students raised their hands.

所有的学生都举起手来。

（2）提高（数量、质量或水平）。
They did many things to living standards.

The landlord raised my rent.

（3）抚养；培养；饲养（家禽）

The old woman raises 20 chickens fir eggs.

（4）征募；筹集

Their sons and daughters raised money for their house.
他们的女儿为他们的住房筹集资金。

例：(A) If you need to go to the restroom in class, please____your hand.

A. raise      B. rise      C. shake      D. wash
2. I’ll make a poster.  我要制作一张海报。（概二L8,L10）
make常用短语：
make room for 为…让地方       make sentences with 用…造句

make a face/faces 做鬼脸        be made in 在…制造

be made of/from 由…制成       make friends with 与…交朋友

make up编造                   make a mistake 出差错 
make sure 确保                   make a noise 吵闹
3. everyday 与every day  （概二L3）
（1） everyday“日常的、每天的”，形容词，在句中只作定语。
It’s important to remember some everyday English. 
记住一些日常英语是很重要的。     
（2） every day是副词词组，在句中作状语，表示“每天、天天”。
We speak English every day. 我们每天讲英语。
Party membership is growing every day. 党员的数量日渐增加。
例：根据汉语完成句子：

（1）互联网已成为日常生活的一部分。

The internet has become part of ____life. （everyday）
（2）他每天步行去上学。

He walks to school___________. （every day）

	L26  Cookies, Please！

	I.词汇：(Words) 
1. price (n.)“价格，价钱” （概二）
（1）高低用high或low形容，不用dear或cheap。
The price is too high/ low. 这个价格太高/低了。
（2）询问价钱“What is the price of…?”“How much is/are…?”
     What’s the price of the watch?=how much is the watch?
例：（D）At present, the price of the houses in Urumqi ____than before. I can afford ____a large one.
A. are cheaper; to buy     B. is cheaper; buy

 C. are lower; buy         D. is lower; to buy
2. I’m afraid用法：（概一L107, L109）
（1）I’m afraid “恐怕，抱歉，对不起”用于句末或句中作插入语，表抱歉、惋惜或委婉拒绝。

It’s too expensive, I’m afraid. 恐怕太贵了。
I’m afraid (that)he has left.恐怕他已经离开了。

（2）I’m afraid so.“恐怕如此”，用于回答对方的提问，委婉地肯定对方说法。

--Is he ill?   
--I’m afraid so.

（3）I’m afraid not.“恐怕不会如此”用于回答对方的提问，委婉地否定对方的说法。

--Can you do it by yourself?  
--I’m afraid not.

注意：I’m not afraid.我不怕。
--Are you afraid?     
--No, I’m not afraid.
例：(C)--Is it possible for David to win the first prize in the running race?

-- ____. He needs to practice more.
       A. Bad luck.         B. I hope not.   
C. I’m afraid not.    D. I don’t agree with you.
3.  a little, little, a few与 few （概一L109  概二L3， L31）
（1）a little“一点点，一些，少量的”用于修饰不可数名词，表肯定。
There is a little salt in the bottle.  瓶子里有一点盐。
（2）little“几乎没有，很少”后跟不可数名词，表否定。
There is little meat in the fridge.  冰箱里几乎没有肉。  
（3）a few“几个，一些”修饰可数名词，表肯定。
She has a few friends here.  在这里她有几个朋友。
（4）few“几乎没有，很少”跟可数名词复数，表否定。     、

There are few apples on the table.  桌子上几乎没苹果。
例：(D)--Can you speak Chinese, Steve? --Yes, only_____. 
--I have been in China for only one month.
       A. few     B. a few    C. little     D. a little

	II．句型
1. But I guess my friend Danny is selling something different. 
但是我猜想我的朋友丹尼正在卖与众不同的东西。
my friend Danny is selling something different是宾语从句。
I hope that you can get good grades in the final exam. 

我希望你在期末考试中获得好成绩。

此句中I 是主语，hope是谓语动词，you can get good grades in the final exam是宾语从句，that连接词，无具体词义。
例：(B) --Could you please tell me_______?

--Certainly.

A. whether are his words believable  
B. if the air is badly polluted    
C. when is the Dragon Boat Festival  
D. what’s the Chinese story Yu Gong Moves a Mountain about
2. I don’t think it would be safe to do my homework on a bicycle. 

  我认为在自行车上做作业时不安全的。

英语中少数表示“猜想、臆断”的实义动词，如think,believe, imagine等，后面跟含否定意义的宾语从句时，习惯上把从句的否定转移到主句，构成“I don’t think/believe…”结构，称“否定转移”。

I’m sorry, but I don’t think I know you.

We don’t believe that he can win.

She doesn’t think she is wrong.

例：I think she has gone to Canada. （改为否定句）
___________________________(I don’t think she has gone to Canada.) 

	L27 Business English

	I. 词汇：
1. hear, hear of, hear from的用法和区别  （概二L22）
（1）hear “听到”，接名词/代词+不带to的不定式/动词-ing形式。
     I heard him go out just now. 我刚才听到他出去了。
I hear d him singing in the next room. 我听见他在隔壁房间里唱歌。
（2）hear of sb./sth. “听说过某人/某事”。
I have heard of him. 我听说过他。
I was shocked to hear of his poor death. 

听到他惨遭不幸的噩耗，我十分震惊。
（3）hear from sb. “收到某人的信（或电子邮件、电话等）”
How often do you hear from your father?
你每隔多久收到你父亲的来信？

注意： hear from的宾语是“人”，而不是“信”。
例：(C) During those days when I was abroad, I was always looking forward to ___my parents, for I missed them very much.

      A. hear    B. hearing    C. hearing from    D. hear from

2.  some time，sometime，some times与sometimes 
（概一L53， 概二L2，L31）
（1）sometimes“有时”频度副词，常用于一般现在时； 

Sometimes he comes by bike and sometimes by bus.
Joan goes to school on foot，but sometimes by bike．
琼步行上学，但有时也骑自行车去。
（2）sometime 副词“某个时候”，可用于一般过去时与一般将来时；
You can hand in your homework sometime before Friday.

你可以在周五前某个时候交作业。
Kate will be back sometime in February．凯特将在2月某个时候回来。
（3）some time名词短语，“一段时间”
I’ ll be away for some time. 我将离开一段时间。
I’ll stay here for some time．我将在这儿呆一段时间。
（4）some times名词短语“几次,几倍”time在这个短语中指次数而不是时间。

I have been to the Great Wall some time. 我去过长城几次。
Our school is some times larger than theirs.
我们学校比他们学校大几倍。
请记住下面口诀：

分开“一段时间”， 相聚“某个时候”。

s连住是“有时”，分开是“几次、几倍”行。
例：(B) Tom hopes he can go to Hangzhou___next year.

       A.sometimes     B. sometime    C. some times    D. some time

3. put on与 wear

put on “穿上”强调动作，即由没穿到穿这一过程的完成，特别指穿衣服、穿鞋、戴帽、戴眼镜等。 Please put on your new coat.

wear强调“穿着”这一状态，也可表示“戴着”。
He’s wearing a white shirt. 

例：(D) Please ____a coat. It is cold outside. 

       A. wear      B. put      C. wore      D. put on

	II. 句型：
You might not always know what they mean. Can you guess the meanings of the sentences below?

  你可能并不总是明白他们的意思。你能猜到下面句子的意思吗？
（1）mean (v.)“表示……的意思；意思是”

Americans people use the word “fall” to mean autumn.

（2）meaning（n.）“意义，含义”

The primary meaning of the word isn’t used now, but you can look it up in a dictionary. 这个单词的本义现在不用了，但你可以在字典里查到。
例：(A) What do you ___by acting like this?

        A. mean      B. meaning      C. to mean      D. means

	L28 Ms. Liu’s Great Idea!

	I. 词汇：
1. No one was around. 周围一个人也没有。

around 的用法：
（1）在…周围，环绕
We all stand closely around him.

They sat in a circle around their teacher.

（2）到处，处处

Let me show you around the town.

（3）在…附近

The supermarket is around the corner.

（4）绕过
Let’s go around the town, not through it.

2. Help Yourself ! 请自便。（概二L57）
help作动词时的用法：
（1）help sb. (to) do sth.帮助某人做某事
Can you help you to lift this stone.

（2）help oneself (to) 自己取（食物等）
Help yourself to some fish.

（3）help sb. with sth.帮助某人做某事
Please help me with my French.

（4）help (to) do sth.有助于做某事
This program helps (to) improve our English .

3. carry, bring 与take （概一L87，概二L29）
（1）carry“运送”，指用车、船、手、肩背等把人或物运送到另一地方。
She carried her baby on her back.

（2）bring“带来，拿来”
Bring me a cup of tea, please.

（3）take “带去，拿走”
Let’s take Mary to the cinema.

例 根据汉语完成句子。

（1）请把你的照片带到这来。Please ____your photo here. (bring)
（2）早班公共汽车带他去学校。The early bus____him to school. (take)

（3）谁把那些书搬到教师去的？Who___the books to the classroom?(carried)

	II. 句型
We were surprised to find that the farmer was so trusting. （概二L23）
发现这位农民如此轻信，我们非常惊讶。

be surprised to do sth. “对做某事感到很惊讶”

I was surprised to find that he’d already left.

be surprised at sb./sth. “对某人的行为/某物感到惊讶。”

I am surprised at your tone.

	L29 How to Push a Product

	I. 词汇

1． With a good quality product and excellent adverting, you will surely succeed. 拥有了优质产品和精彩的广告，你一定会成功。（概二L31）
（1）succeed (v.) “成功”
     succeed in doing=be successful in doing 成功做某事
If you want to succeed, always force yourself to do more.
（2）success (n.)“成功，胜利，成功之人，成功的事”
Never be satisfied with just a little success.

Failure is the mother of success.

（3）successful (adj.)“成功的，有成就的”
The performance was very successful.

例：（A）He has had great ___in his business.

        A. success    B. succeed    C. successful    D. successfully

2. offer与provide （概一L123）
都是动词，“提供，供给”，不同用法：

（1） offer表“主动提供服务、工作等”，常用于offer sb. sth.或offer sth.to sb. 

She offered me a cup of tea. 她给我端了杯茶。
（2）provide为人或物提供需要或有用的东西，无主动或慷慨之意，仅仅是出于某种责任，强调提供必需品或有用的东西，尤其是生活用品。
可用于provide sb.（with sth.）或provide sth.（for sb.）结构。
The school provided food for the students. 学校为学生提供伙食。
例：(B) --How is Tom now?

--I hear the company __him a good job, but he refused it.

 A. provided    B. offered    C. passed    D. introduced 

	II. 句型
Remember, you need to make your product stand out.

记住，你需要使你的产品引人注目。

stand out “引人注目，突出，出色”

The primary colors stand out clearly from the others.  

主色在其他颜色的衬托下显得特别醒目。
He is a tall man who stands out in any crowd.

他是一个魁梧的人，在任何人群中都很突出。

Three of the cars tested stood out among the rest.

被测试的汽车中有三辆比其他的要出色。

	L30 A Cookie Sale

	I.词汇
1. I sold out of my cookies in less than an hour!

不到一小时，我卖完了我的小甜饼！
less than 的用法：

（1）用于两者比较，意为“比……少(小)”。
I earn less than he does. 我比他钱挣得少。

She eats less than a bird. 她的食量比小鸟还少。

（2）指数量上“少于”“不足”。
It costs less than￡5. 这值不了5英镑。

I'll see you in less than three weeks. 要不了3周我就能再见到你了。

（3）表示轻微的否定，“一点也不”
The receptionist was less than helpful. 那个接待员一点忙都不帮。
2. crazy “疯狂的，不理智的，古怪的”
Are you crazy?
It was crazy of you to let him go.
3. invent, inventor与invention

invent (v.) 发明，捏造，虚构

Later he invented new treatments to help soldiers.

后来，他发明了新的治疗方法，用来帮助那些士兵。  

invention (n.) 发明，创造，虚构的故事

It’s a most useful invention. 

inventor (n.) 发明者,发明家
  He was a great inventor.

	II.句型

1. too…to的用法： （概一L104）
（1）too…to…“too+形容词或副词+to+动词原形”表否定含义，“太…而不能…”。

His brother is too excited to fall asleep.他哥哥激动得睡不着觉。
  He is too shy to speak to her. 
（2）too＋adj./adv.＋for sb./ sth. to do 

English is too difficult for Ling Ling to learn.
英语对玲玲来讲太难，她学不会。 

This question is too difficult for me to answer.
这是一个我不能回答的难题。
2. 动名词作主语
动名词作主语表示经常性、习惯性的动作，在口语中也可以表示具体的动作。

Seeing is believing. 

Helping her is my duty.

Working with you is a pleasure.

例（D）__vegetable juice is a good habit, which helps you eat a balanced diet.

      A. Drink     B. Drank     C. Drunk     D. Drinking

	单元语法

	宾语从句（概一L99）

	1. 概念：在句中起宾语作用的从句叫宾语从句。

2. 结构：连接词+一个陈述句

3. 引导宾语从句的连接词

（1）连接词that
（2）连接词 if, whether
（3）连接代词 what，who，whom，which, whose等

（4）连接副词 how，where，when，why等
4. 宾语从句的分类：根据连词的不同，可分三大类：

（1）连接词that引导的宾语从句（that 通常可以省略）
I heard that be joined the army.

Why did he say (that) he would go back?

（2）连接词if, whether 引导的宾语从句.

I want to know if he lives here.

Do you know whether he will come tomorrow.
（3）连接代词或代词副词引导的宾语从句
（可以理解为是由一个特殊疑问句变化而来的）

Do you know who will come this afternoon?
Did you hear what she said？

I don't know whose that is．

Could you tell me which gate we have to go to?  
We didn't know when she would come back．

Can you tell me how I get to the post office?
5. 用法：
（1）连接词的选择和位置

（2）陈述语序

（3）时态（主句是现在时或将来时时，宾语从句不受限制；主句是过去时时，从句用相应的过去时。）
例题   单项选择

1.(D)—The light in his room is still on. Do you know ______? 

—In order to prepare for the coming exam.

A. if he works hard    B. why he stays up so late 

C. why is he so busy   D. when he will stop working
2. (B)—Excuse me, can you tell me ____?

—Sorry, I’m a stranger here.
A. where is the post office   B. where the post office is

C. how can I get to the post office   D. where can I find the post office

3. (B)—The project is so difficult for your cousin．

—Yes, I am wondering _______．

A. that he will finish it on time  B. whether he can finish it by himself

C. how could I help him out   D. can I do anything necessary for him
4.(C)—Could you tell me ____the Space Museum?

    —Sure, next Monday.

      A. when we visited      B. when did we visit

C. when we will visit    D. when will we visit
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